
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
A special meeting of the COUNCIL Committee will be held at 7.00 pm on TUESDAY, 11 
JULY 2023 in the Council Chamber, 13 Church Street, Clitheroe, BB7 2DD. 
Following the meeting a buffet supper will be served. 
 
I do hope you can be there. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
  
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 
2.   APPOINTMENT OF HONORARY ALDERMEN 

 
(Pages 3 - 6) 

 To confer the title of Honorary Alderman on the following persons who, in the 
opinion of the Council, have rendered service to the Council as a past Member: 
  

RICHARD SHERRAS 
ROBERT THOMPSON 

  
A note of the legal provisions relating to Honorary Aldermen is attached for the 
information of Councillors. 
 

 
 
 
Electronic agendas sent to members of Council – Councillor Stuart Hirst, Councillor 
Anthony (Tony) Austin, Councillor Jan Alcock JP, Councillor Stephen Atkinson, 
Councillor Susan Bibby, Councillor David Birtwhistle, Councillor Ian Brown, Councillor 
Stella Brunskill JP, Councillor Louise Edge, Councillor Rosemary (Rosie) Elms, 
Councillor Steve Farmer, Councillor Stewart Fletcher, Councillor Mark French, 
Councillor Jonathan Hill, Councillor Mark Hindle, Councillor Simon Hore, Councillor 
Kevin Horkin MBE, Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor Donna O'Rourke, Councillor 
Simon O'Rourke, Councillor Mary Robinson, Councillor James (Jim) Rogerson, 
Councillor Gary Scott, Councillor Nicholas Stubbs, Councillor Karl Barnsley, Councillor 
Derek Brocklehurst, Councillor Ryan Corney, Councillor Sophie Cowman, Councillor 
Rachael Ray, Councillor Lee Jameson, Councillor Robin Walsh, Councillor Charles 
McFall, Councillor John Atherton, Councillor Aaron Wilkins-Odudu, Councillor Gaye 
McCrum, Councillor Malcolm Peplow, Councillor Kieren Spencer, Councillor Michael 
Graveston, Councillor Gaynor Hibbert and Councillor Lee Street. 
 
 
Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack

mailto:committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



s. 249 Honorary titles., Local Government Act 1972 c. 70  

 

 

© 2023 Thomson Reuters. 1 

 

 

Local Government Act 1972 c. 70 

s. 249 Honorary titles. 

 
 

Law In Force 

 

 

Version 5 of 5 

30 April 2012 - Present 

  

Subjects 

Local government; Peerages and dignities 

  

Keywords 

Appointments; Councillors; Local authorities’ powers and duties; Peerages and dignities; Principal councils 

  

249.— [Honorary titles]1 . 

(1)   A principal council may, by a resolution passed by not less than two-thirds of the members voting thereon at a 

meeting of the council specially convened for the purpose with notice of the object, confer the title of honorary aldermen [ 

or honorary alderwomen]2 on persons who have, in the opinion of the council, rendered eminent services to the council as 

past members of that council, but who are not then [members]3 of the council. 

(2)   No honorary alderman [ or honorary alderwoman]4 shall, while serving as a [member]5 of the council, be entitled to be 

addressed as alderman [ or alderwoman]6 or to attend or take part in any civic ceremonies of the council as an alderman [ 

or alderwoman]7 . 

(3)  Services rendered to the council of an existing county, county borough, borough or urban or rural district the area of 

which becomes wholly or partly included in a new county or district shall be treated for the purposes of subsection (1) 

above as services rendered to the council of the new county or district, as the case may be. 

(4)   An honorary alderman [ or honorary alderwoman]8 of a principal council may attend and take part in such civic 

ceremonies as the council may from time to time decide, but shall not, as such, have the right— 

(a)  to attend meetings of the council or a committee of the council (including a joint committee upon which they are 

represented); or 

(b)  to receive any such allowances or other payments as are payable under sections 173 to 176 above [ or Part 8 of the 

Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011]9 . 

[ 

(4A)  A principal council may spend such reasonable sum as they think fit for the purpose of presenting an address, or a 

casket containing an address, to a person on whom they have conferred the title of honorary alderman or honorary 

alderwoman. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I605CBE51E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I21631CA0E44911DA8D70A0E70A78ED65/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I3E3408E27E1711E08584F735A55E3281/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I85CD00E07E1611E0B95D849E9B23C14A/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)


s. 249 Honorary titles., Local Government Act 1972 c. 70  

 

 

© 2023 Thomson Reuters. 2 

 

]10[ 

(5)  Subject as follows, a relevant authority may admit to be honorary freemen or honorary freewomen of the place or area 

for which it is the authority— 

(a)  persons of distinction, and 

(b)  persons who have, in the opinion of the authority, rendered eminent services to that place or area. 

(6)  In this section “relevant authority”  means— 

(a)  a principal council; 

(b)  a parish or community council; 

(c)  charter trustees in England constituted— 

(i)  under section 246 of the Local Government Act 1972, 

(ii)  by the Charter Trustees Regulations 1996 (SI 1996/263), or 

(iii)  under Part 1 of the Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007. 

(7)  The power in subsection (5) above is exercisable by resolution of the relevant authority. 

(8)  A resolution under subsection (7) above must be passed— 

(a)  at a meeting of the relevant authority which is specially convened for the purpose and where notice of the object of 

the meeting has been given; and 

(b)  by not less than two-thirds of the members of the relevant authority (or, in the case of charter trustees, of the 

trustees) who vote on it. 

(9)  A relevant authority may spend such reasonable sum as it thinks fit for the purpose of presenting an address or a casket 

containing an address to a person on whom the authority has conferred the title of honorary freeman or honorary 

freewoman under subsection (5) above. 

(10)  The admission of a person as honorary freeman or honorary freewoman does not confer on that person any of the 

rights referred to in section 248(4) above. 

]11 

Page 4

https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I21C1DE71E44911DA8D70A0E70A78ED65/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I605CBE51E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I758994B1E42311DAA7CF8F68F6EE57AB/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I7EF473E095D311DC95FFFE342170B1DA/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/IDE110EE095A311DC92F88A4A32CC274F/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I21C587F1E44911DA8D70A0E70A78ED65/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)


s. 249 Honorary titles., Local Government Act 1972 c. 70  

 

 

© 2023 Thomson Reuters. 3 

 

Notes 

 

1 

 

Words substituted by Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 c. 20 Pt 1 c.5 s.29(2) 

(January 12, 2010) 

 

2 

 

Words inserted by Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 c. 20 Pt 1 c.5 s.29(3) 

(January 12, 2010) 

 

3 

 

Word substituted by Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 c. 28 Sch.3 para.9(2) (December 

30, 2007) 

 

4 

 

Words inserted by Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 c. 20 Pt 1 c.5 s.29(4)(a) 

(January 12, 2010) 

 

5 

 

Word substituted by Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007 c. 28 Sch.3 para.9(3) (December 

30, 2007) 

 

6 

 

Words inserted by Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 c. 20 Pt 1 c.5 s.29(4)(b) 

(January 12, 2010) 

 

7 

 

Words inserted by Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 c. 20 Pt 1 c.5 s.29(4)(c) 

(January 12, 2010) 

 

8 

 

Words inserted by Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 c. 20 Pt 1 c.5 s.29(5) 

(January 12, 2010) 

 

9 

 

Words inserted by Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 c. 04 Sch.3 para.1(5) (April 30, 2012) 

 

10 

 

Added by Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 c. 20 Pt 1 c.5 s.29(6) (January 12, 

2010) 

 

11 

 

S.249(5)-(10) substituted for s.249(5)-(9) by Local Democracy, Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 

c. 20 Pt 1 c.5 s.29(7) (January 12, 2010) 

 

 

  

Part XII MISCELLANEOUS AND GENERAL > Status, etc. > s. 249 Honorary titles. 

Contains public sector information licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0. 

 

Page 5

https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/ID9B901E2D20A11DEA78F83CF808B96F2/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/ID9B901E2D20A11DEA78F83CF808B96F2/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/IE95DE2E095D111DC95FFFE342170B1DA/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/ID9B901E2D20A11DEA78F83CF808B96F2/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/IE95DE2E095D111DC95FFFE342170B1DA/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/ID9B901E2D20A11DEA78F83CF808B96F2/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/ID9B901E2D20A11DEA78F83CF808B96F2/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/ID9B901E2D20A11DEA78F83CF808B96F2/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/I3E44F8D27E1711E08584F735A55E3281/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/ID9B901E2D20A11DEA78F83CF808B96F2/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)
https://uk.westlaw.com/Document/ID9B901E2D20A11DEA78F83CF808B96F2/View/FullText.html?originationContext=document&transitionType=DocumentItem&vr=3.0&rs=PLUK1.0&contextData=(sc.DocLink)


This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Appointment of Honorary Aldermen

